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The responses to questions included herein are official responses by the Department of State (DOS) to 
questions submitted by potential proposers and are hereby incorporated into the Request for Proposals 
RFP # 22-DRINYF-20 issued on September 16, 2022. In the event of any conflict between the Request for 
Proposals and these responses, the requirements or information contained in these responses will 
prevail. 

 
 

Questions and Answers 
 

Q1. We are not a NYS Certified Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Business. Therefore, we are 
requesting a total waiver of this requirement per Section 7.1.16, page 39 of the RFP. Is there 
anything you need specifically from us aside from the Form SDVOB 200? 
 
A1. The only SDVOB form required to be submitted with the Proposal is SDVOB Form 100 – SDVOB 
Utilization Plan which can be blank if no SDVOB subcontractors have been identified at the time of 
proposal. Goals will be established at the time of contract execution based on subcontracting 
opportunities and availability of SDVOB certified firms. If a consultant is unable to meet the SDVOB 
goal established at the time of contract execution, a waiver may be sought either prior to or after 
contract execution. 
 
 
Q2.  
• We are a NYS Certified WBE. However, we are not an MBE. As such, do we need to partner 

with an MBE in order to submit a proposal? If not, is there anything specific we need to 
provide in the proposal such as a waiver? 

•  Can a firm that is both an MBE and WBE fulfill the entire M/WBE goal? Or do two separate 
firms need to be contracted to fulfill the M/WBE goal (e.g. one MBE and one WBE)? 

 
A2. The 30% MWBE goal can be met through the use of just an MBE or WBE alone. If a proposer 
anticipates meeting the 30% MWBE goal through the use of either MBE or WBE firms, they can 
request a 30%/0% goal split as appropriate. MWBE goals will be established at the time of contract 
execution. 
 
 
Q3. Our firm was prequalified in 2021 by ESD for Real Estate and Planning Advisory Services and 
Construction and Engineering related to DRI. Am I still prequalified and eligible to submit a 
proposal on this RFP #22?  

A3. Any prequalification granted by ESD will no longer apply as these contracts will be executed by 
DOS and not ESD. Please refer to the RFP, Section 1.4 for eligibility requirements for this solicitation. 



 

Q4. Per the RFP#22-DRINYF-20, if any part of the contract is going to be sublet to a subcontractor, 
“the Contractor shall submit to DOS in writing, the name of each proposed subcontractor and 
obtain written consent to utilize such subcontractor”. 

We intend to include a subcontractor in our proposal. Do we need to obtain written consent from 
the NYSDOS to include the subcontractor in our proposal (per Section 7.1.3) or is this only if we 
are selected? 

A4. No, you do not need to obtain written consent from NYSDOS to include subcontractors in a 
proposal. 

 

Q5. Are we to assume that the DRI and NYF projects would be worked on concurrently, within the 
same timeline? 

A5. Generally, yes. The timelines would be similar for DRI and NYF. 

 

Q6.  

• For the Cost Proposal bid form, can the total hours change or does it have to stay at 2,000 as 
indicated on the template (it is understood that the dollar amount is capped at $300,000).  

• The RFP states the Cost Proposal Bid form is for illustrative purposes only. Is it required that 
hours total 2,000 as stated on the form? 

• Att.8 -   Can the 2,000 total estimated hours be revised up or down to reflect the hours our 
team anticipates for either a DRI or NYF award? 

A6. Hours must total 2,000 as shown on the form. As stated in the RFP, Section 5.5.2(2), no 
alterations may be made to the Cost Proposal Bid Form; submission of an altered Cost Proposal Bid 
Form may disqualify the Proposer. The Cost Proposal bid form is designed to allow DOS to evaluate 
rates proposed by each Proposer; estimated hours are for proposal purposes only and are not a 
guarantee of hours under the resulting contract. 

 

Q7. When during the DRI process will requirements related to the NY Stretch Energy Code and 
Decarbonization components be made available to communities and consultants?  

A7. Program guidance, including requirement related to decarbonization, will be available for the 
next round of DRI and NYF no later than January 2023.  

 

Q8. Will a decarb/stretch energy code consultant be provided for all DRI/NYF communities? 

A8. New York State Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA) and their consultant 
will be available to assist communities and project sponsors with how decarbonization and stretch 



energy code can/should be incorporated into projects.  These will be shared resources across all 
DRI/NYF communities.  Proposers may include expertise in these areas on their consultant team to 
provide more direct support. 

 

Q9. How many rounds of DOS review are anticipated for the Strategic Investment Plans? 

A9. The Department requires well-conceived, thoughtful, complete, well-written and edited 
graphically rich final Strategic Investment Plans (SIPs) that fully conform to program guidance 
related to the SIPs.  Edits will be required until the Department is satisfied, and the product is 
accepted as final.  Proposers are encouraged to include an editor on their team to ensure quality 
writing and presentation of information. 

 

Q10. Should the provided fee proposal be based on the $300,000 typical DRI award, or the 
$250,000 or $200,000 awards for NYF community awards? Especially, we intend to submit our 
interest in being considered for both types of projects. 

A10. The Cost Proposal Bid Form requires proposers to enter rates for the Functional Titles listed in 
RFP Section 5.5.2 and estimated hours for each Functional Title totaling 2,000 hours. The Cost 
Proposal Bid Form may reflect whatever preference the Proposer indicated on Attachment 5. 
Estimates can be based on either a DRI proposal for one community or a NYF proposal for one 
community however the rates entered will apply to awards made for any DRI and/or NYF awards 
received. 

 

Q11. On p.19 there is mention of the proposers providing “a timeline for the project showing the 
ability to complete the project within the allotted timeframe.” Can you confirm that the 
“Anticipated Project Timeline for 2022-2023” on page 15, which suggests approximately a 11-12 
month timeframe, is correct? 

A11. The anticipated timeline/timeframe shown on page 15 is generally correct.  The bulk of the 
work is anticipated to occur between January and July when a substantially completed Strategic 
Investment Plan is expected.  

 

Q12. The RFP indicates that it will cover DRI/NYF planning services for the next five years. We 
request clarification on several points: 

• Does this mean that successful bidders will be awarded DRIs and/or NYFs each year of the 
five-year period, or will successful bidders need to re-apply every year (i.e. is a successful 
award equivalent to being placed on a pre-qualified list)? 

• Will this contract function like an on-call, where winning firms will submit a mini RFP for each 
DRI or NYF project each year? 



A12. Proposers offered a contract would not need to reapply and would be engaged again in each 
successive year for the program(s) and region(s) they were awarded dependent on the ongoing 
availability of funding for the programs and the capacity of the awarded firm as determined by DOS. 

 

Q13.  

• Will the bidder’s preferences regarding number of plans and geographies be “locked in” for 
the five-year period? Will the consultant be able to revise these preferences annually based 
on changes in capacity?  

• Does DOS expect that an awarded Proposer will support the same program (i.e. DRI or NYF) 
and same region for all five years of the contract? 

A13. The bidder’s preferences regarding number of plans and geographies will be taken into account 
when determining the awarded consultant for each Program/Region however there is no guarantee 
that preferences will be accommodated. Five-year contracts will be executed with the top ranked 
consultant in each Program/Region. Throughout the contract term, projects will be assigned based 
on final ranking by Program/Region and capacity of the firm. In the event that the awarded Proposer 
is unavailable or does not have the capacity to take on the project in their awarded Program/Region 
in future years, DOS may contract with the next highest scoring Proposer in the Program/Region 
who is available and has the capacity to take on the project. There will be no opportunity to revise 
the Program(s)/Region(s) in future years, however awarded consultants will have the option of 
declining the project if they do not have the capacity to take it on in subsequent years. 

 

Q14. Is the consultant required to maintain its team of subconsultants for the five-year period? 

A14. Proposers are not required to maintain the team of subconsultants for the full five-year period, 
however in accordance with the RFP, Section 7.1.3, before any part of the contract shall be sublet, 
the Contractor shall submit to DOS in writing the name of each proposed subcontractor and obtain 
written consent to utilize such subcontractor. Proposers must maintain capacity to undertake the 
scope of work throughout the contract term. 

 

Q15. The RFP states that no more than two awards will be made to any one consultant (see p. 5 
and 11). Yet p. 54 of the RFP appears to indicate multiple options for a combination of DRIs and 
NYFs. Please confirm what constitutes a single award. Can a bidder indicate interest in two DRIs or 
two sets of NYF plans? 

A15. A single award is defined as a distinct combination of Program and Region; it is anticipated that 
there will be 20 awards made under this RFP, one in each of the ten REDC Regions for DRI and one in 
each of the ten REDC Regions for NYF. Proposers may indicate interest in more than two 
Program/Region combinations, however no more than two awards will be made to any one 
consultant. 

 



Q16. Please clarify the anticipated differences in scope between DRIs and NYFs: 

• Will the 2-3 NYF communities each have their own Local Planning Committee? 
• Will communities who are applying together (under NY Forward) have one combined LPC for 

both communities? Or should we assume coordination and presentations to two different 
LPCs? 

A16.  Each DRI and NYF community will have its own Local Planning Committee (LPC) with separate 
planning processes. There is no provision in NYF for communities to apply together.  Two or more 
communities can apply for DRI.  In that instance, there would be one LPC and a shared pool of $9.7 
million to be allocated for projects. 

 

Q17. Will each NYF community within a single REDC have its own Strategic Investment Plan, or 
will each REDC package the Strategic Investment Plan for the 2-3 REDC NYF communities? 

A17. Each NYF community will develop its own Strategic Investment Plan. NYF Strategic Investment 
Plans will not be packaged into one plan for the REDC region. 

 

Q18. Given the fewer projects, is it envisioned that NYF LPCs will have fewer meetings or other 
opportunities to streamline the process? 

A18. We anticipate that the NYF planning process may be streamlined somewhat given a lower 
award amount available for projects and potentially less complex NYF areas. This will be outlined in 
final guidance provided post award. 

 

Q19. In DRI Round 5 there was a provision that projects over a certain threshold were required to 
meet the NYS Stretch Energy Code. The RFP does not mention this requirement. Can you clarify 
whether it will be included in future DRI or NYF Strategic Investment Plans? 

A19. For DRI, project sponsors will be required to incorporate decarbonization into recommended 
projects at thresholds to be determined in final program guidance.  For this round of NYF, project 
sponsors will be encouraged but not required to incorporate decarbonization into NYF projects, 
however this could change in future years. 

 

Q20. On p. 19, the RFP indicates that the consultant should provide the percentage of time 
proposed for each team member. Does this requirement apply to the Lead Proposer only, or to 
the entire team? Does it mean the percentage of the total project time that each team member 
will contribute, or the percentage of each team member’s total time that they will devote to this 
project? 



A20. The proposer should include the percentage of time proposed for each member of the entire 
team, to the extent practicable.  The percentage should be the percentage of the team members’ 
total time to demonstrate that they have the capacity to undertake the work proposed. 

 

Q21. Regarding the Cost Proposal, please clarify: 

• Is Attachment 8 required to be completed for the Lead Proposer only, or the entire team 
(including subconsultants)? 

• Cost Proposal Bid Form: Is the cost proposal bid form only completed for the prime consultant 
or for the whole team? 

A21.The Cost Proposal Bid Form will list rates for each of the Functional Titles listed in Section 5.5.2 
of the RFP as well as estimated hours for each Functional Title totaling 2,000 hours. This form is for 
evaluation purposes only and will allow DOS to evaluate rates proposed by each Proposer. Any staff 
included in the Proposal as contributing to the project should be included in the Functional Title 
under which they would be billed.  

 

Q22. 

• If [the Cost Proposal Bid Form is to be completed] for the entire team, should the consultant 
use a blended team rate for each functional title? 

• Can each functional title have a range of rates given the number of firms on a team? 

A22. How the Proposer determines the rate to be billed for each Functional Title is a business 
decision, however, a range of rates is not allowed. Each Functional Title must have one rate. Rates 
provided in the proposal will be the “not to exceed” rate for that Functional Title. 

 

Q23. Please confirm that no task budgets are required at this time. 

A23. That is correct. 

 

Q24. Given that the fee and total hours [on the Cost Proposal] are capped, please confirm what 
the “lowest overall project cost” indicates? 

A24. As stated in the RFP, Section 5.5.2(2), the Cost Proposal Bid Form will list rates for each of the 
Functional Titles listed as well as the estimated hours for each Functional Title totaling 2,000 hours. 
Proposers will then multiply the rates times the estimated hours for each Functional Title and total 
the overall project cost. The proposer with the lowest overall project cost will receive the maximum 
points for the Cost Proposal. 

 



Q25.Regarding MWBE and SDVOB goals, if the consultant is awarded more than one DRI or NYF 
community, will these goals apply to each community, or will they be based on one master 
contract with the State? Likewise, will the requirement that the Lead Proposer complete at least 
50% of the work apply to each community, or a master contract? 

A25. DRI and NYF are separate programs, and as such, DRI and NYF contracts will be separate. It is 
anticipated that 20 contracts will be executed under this RFP; one in each of the ten REDC regions 
for DRI and one in each of the ten REDC regions for NYF. MWBE and SDVOB goals will be applied at 
the time of contract execution to each contract. Similarly, the 50% time requirement for the Lead 
Proposer will apply to each contract. 

 

Q26. Please confirm whether only the Lead Proposer should submit sample experience and forms, 
or the entire team. 

A26. As stated in the RFP, Section 5.5.1(2), Lead Proposers should describe the experience of the 
proposed team(s). In order to demonstrate the full capacity and experience of the team, please 
submit information for the entire team. All required forms only need to be completed by the Lead 
Proposer who will be the responsible party for all purposes including contract award and execution. 

 

Q27. Has the deadline been extended? It says September 23, 2022. 

A27. The deadline for this RFP has not been extended. As stated in the Key Dates on the cover page 
of the RFP, proposals are due to be submitted electronically by October 28, 2022 by 11:59 pm. 

 

Q28. Is this RFP for Architectural and Planning Consultants? 

A28. The RFP is for all eligible proposers per RFP Section 1.4. 

  

Q29. We have previously been a successful bidder through this program and found the 
assignments to be worthwhile and interesting. However, as a proponent that is out of NY State 
and out of country (we are based in Canada), we want to receive clear confirmation of our 
eligibility to be awarded projects through this procurement process before we assign resources to 
respond to the RFP. Would you be able to confirm our eligibility? 

A29. Requirements to be eligible to submit a proposal under this solicitation can be found in the 
RFP, Section 1.4.  

 

Q30. Can you please let us know who are the consultants participating in this RFP? 



A30. This is a new RFP so consultants have not been selected yet. This RFP is open to all eligible 
proposers as defined in Section 1.4 of the RFP. Once awards have been made under this RFP, results 
will be posted in the Contract Reporter as required by Economic Development Law. 

 

Q31. The link to the New York State MWBE directory included in the RFP is not working. It was 
working last week. Can you provide a working link to the directory? 

A31. The New York State MWBE directory can be found at https://ny.newnycontracts.com/. 

 

Q32.  

• If a vendor is a certified MBE or WBE for the New York City Economic Development 
Corporation or the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey, would that meet the MBE or 
WBE requirement for this contract? 

• Can a MBE or WBE be accepted if they are not currently on NYS list, but are in the process of 
registering in NYS as an MBE or WBE? 

A32. Only the use of New York State certified Minority-owned Business Enterprises or Women-
owned Business Enterprises count toward the utilization requirement under this RFP. 

 

Q33.  

• The middle section of Attachment 5 asks the Proposer to indicate interest in receiving 
different combinations of DRI and NYF Region awards, and provides five options. May a 
Proposer select multiple options indicating interest in, for example, 2 DRI Regions OR 1 DRI 
and 1 NYF Region? If a Proposer may select multiple options, may we indicate which is the 
preferred option?  

• Regarding Attachment 5, in response to the question "Please indicate the type and number of 
awards the Proposer is interested in receiving" should the consultant team identify a 
preference, as with the Region/Program combinations? 

• Att.5 - Program and Regional Preferences: Can we identify more than one type/number of 
award combinations? 

 

A33. In Attachment 5, Proposers may select multiple options under “Please indicate the type and 
number of awards the Proposer is interested in receiving” and Proposers may indicate a preference 
for one option over the others. Preferences will be taken into consideration when determining 
contract award however there is no guarantee that preferences will be accommodated. 

  

 

 

https://ny.newnycontracts.com/


Q34.  

• If an awarded Proposer determines that a community needs technical support that is not 
represented on our team, will they be able to add team members later? This has been past 
practice in the DRI program. 

• During the five years of this award, can subconsultant team members be added to or removed 
from community-specific teams each year to respond to the needs of each community (while 
still meeting MWBE goals)? For example, if a community needs a housing analysis in Year 1 of 
the contract but in later years a different community does not need one, can we replace a 
housing analysis subconsultant with another firm with more relevant expertise, or change 
contract amounts for other firms to meet MWBE goals? 

A34. Yes, additional team members may be added or removed later as needed however in 
accordance with the RFP, Section 7.1.3, before any part of the contract shall be sublet, the 
Contractor shall submit to DOS in writing the name of each proposed subcontractor and obtain 
written consent to utilize such subcontractor.  

 

Q35. How will the NYF process differ (if at all) from the DRI process, in terms of requirements for 
the Downtown Profile, community engagement, LPC meetings and coordination, and final report? 

A35. We anticipate the DRI and NYF planning processes to be similar.  There may be opportunities to 
streamline the NYF process depending on the complexity of the community/area.  The final Strategic 
Investment Plans will follow the same template. 

 

Q36. Can a proposer serve as prime contractor in one region (or more) while serving as a 
subcontractor in one region (or more)? 

A36. Yes. There are no prohibitions or limitations on being a subcontractor.  

  

Q37. Given that this contract has a five-year duration, are consultants bound to stick with the 
rates we submit, or will there be opportunity to adjust rates during the contract program years? 

A37. The process for price increases is detailed in the RFP, Section 5.5.3. 

 

Q38. Are subconsultants expected to fill out an OCSD-2 form as in previous years? 

A38. Only forms required as part of this RFP are necessary.  An OCSD-2 is not a required form.  

 

Q39. Are references required with our proposal as they have been in previous rounds? We didn’t 
see this as an RFP requirement so just wanted to confirm. 

A39. No, references are not required with the proposal. 



 

Q40. Do the functional titles replace professional titles? Or do we include both. 

A40. As requested in the RFP, Section 5.5.1(3) the organization chart should include both the official 
title and the functional title so evaluators understand the expertise of proposed staff members. The 
Cost proposal is only based on functional titles. 

  

Q41. Do the Subconsultants need to fill out any of the forms? 

A41. Forms should be completed by the Lead Proposer who will be the responsible party for all 
purposes including contract award and contract execution. 

 

Q42. If a firm is both a WBE and MBE can one portion of their fee count toward the WBE 
requirement and a separate portion of their fee count toward the MBE Requirement? The same 
portion of their fee would not be used twice to count toward both requirements. 

A42. In this case, DOS would choose whether to count the utilization under the MBE or WBE goal. 
The goals would be established in the contract to reflect the category under which utilization will be 
reported and a 30%/0% goal split is acceptable in this instance. 

 

Q43.  

• Is it possible for a consultant team to be considered for all regions? 
• Att.5 - Program and Regional Preferences: Can we identify more than two regions for 

consideration? 

A43. Yes, proposers can indicate any number of regions for which they would like to be considered 
on Attachment 5, however no more than two awards will be made to any one proposer. 

 

Q44. Is the “cost schedule sufficiently detailed to explain the cost assumptions” (p.22) similar to 
the detailed cost spreadsheet required in previous RFPs for DRI, with estimated hours per staff by 
task? 

A44. Proposers are not required to provide estimated hours per staff by task, rather proposers must 
provide estimated hours per functional title. The cost proposal should also include details as to how 
rates were determined. 

 

Q45. Does the reference to a “staffing proposal for each project applied for” (p.18) require 
separate organization charts for DRI and NYF? Or can we provide an expanded staff roster from 
which we would build team(s) tailored for each community’s project? 



A45. Separate staffing organization charts are not necessary. An expanded staff roster can be 
presented from which individual project teams can be built.  However, the roster should be clear as 
to roles of each proposed team member and demonstrate sufficient capacity of each role (e.g. 
project lead, etc.) to undertake the work proposed. 

 

Q46. Which index will be used to determine allowable rate increases: the CPI-U or the PPP? They 
are each mentioned separately on page 21 of the RFP. 

A46. Specific rates listed in Attachment 8 may be adjusted annually by the lower of either the 
percent change for the Producer Price Index (PPI; as calculated by the U.S. Department of Labor – 
Bureau of Labor Statistics) for the most recent final month, or 2.0 percent. 

 

Q47. Are consultants precluded from doing work related to implementation if they work on the 
plan?  

A47. Consultants are not precluded from working on DRI/NYF related implementation if they work 
on the DRI or NYF planning.  

 

Q48. Could you please confirm that if a firm is interested in DRI and NYF work, that only one cost 
proposal bid form is required? 

A48. That is correct. Rates provided on the Cost Proposal Bid Form will be used to establish contract 
pricing for both the DRI and NYF if awarded. 

 

Q49. Does the response and the submitting firm have to reflect capacity to complete all services? 

A49. Proposers must demonstrate capacity to undertake the scope of work indicated in the RFP. 
Recognizing the broad scope of requirements for the DRI and NYF programs, Proposers are 
encouraged to consider a team relationship with other firms or not-for-profit organizations to 
demonstrate multi-sector knowledge, the ability to leverage a wide range of functional capabilities, 
formulate scalable solutions and develop implementation-ready projects. Proposals that include a 
team of consultants must identify a Lead Proposer who will be the responsible party for all purposes 
including contract award and contract execution. The Lead Proposer must provide the majority of 
the services contemplated in the Scope of Work, or more than 50 percent. 

   

Q50. Will the state prioritize or score higher firms/teams that offer all services? 

A50. Evaluation criteria are identified in Section 6.2 of the RFP. As detailed in Section 6.2.1(3), 
proposals will be evaluated on the quality and completeness of the proposed approach to 
accomplishing the tasks and deliverables as described in the Scope of Services of the RFP. 

 


